
Agricultural Advisory Committee

AGENDA

 
Thursday, February 9, 2017

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER:

(a)    The purpose of this Meeting is to consider certain Development Applications as noted on
this meeting Agenda.

(b)    The Reports to Committee concerning the subject development applications are available
on the City's website at www.kelowna.ca.

(c)     All representations to the Agricultural Advisory Committee form part of the public record.

(d)     As an Advisory Committee of Council, the Agricultural Advisory Comittee will make a
recommendation of support or non-support for each application as part of the public process. 
City Council will consider the application at a future date and, depending on the nature of the
file, will make a decision or a recommendation to the Agricultural Land Commission.

2. Appointment of Acting Chair

To appoint an Acting Chair for the February 9, 2017 Meeting as the Chair and Vice-Chair are
both absent.

3. Applications for Consideration

3.1 2550 Benvoulin Road, A16-0015 - Antonio & Carella D'Anzica 3 - 16

To applicant is requesting permission from the Agricultural Land Commission for the
Non-Farm Use of the subject property for retail sales of non-farm product in an area
exceeding 150m2.

4. Minutes 17 - 24

To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of December 8, 2016.

5. Referrals

There are no referrals.

1

http://www.kelowna.ca/


6. Old Business

6.1 Temporary Farm Worker Housing (TFWH) – Text Amendment 25 - 48

To provide policy for temporary farm worker housing that meets the needs of farmers,
which adheres to provincial standards, in conjunction with a consistent regional
approach.

7. New Business

7.1 Proposed change to Notification Policy for properties outside the Permanent Growth
Boundary

7.2 Request from Committee Member for a meeting with the Agricultural Land
Commission's Regional Panel

7.3 Request from Committee Member for a meeting with other Agricultural Advisory
Committees in the area

8. Next Meeting

March 9, 2017

9. Termination of Meeting

2



COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 
 

Date: February 9, 2017 

RIM No. 1210-21 

To: Agricultural Advisory Committee (AAC) 

From: Community Planning Department (TH) 

Application: A16-0015 Owner:  Antonio & Carella D’Anzica 

Address: 2550 Benvoulin Road Applicant: Springfield Nurseries Ltd. / Art 
Knapp Plantland and Florists 

Subject: Application to the ALC for Non-Farm Use  

 

1.0 Purpose 

The applicant is requesting permission from the Agricultural Land Commission for the Non-Farm Use of 
retail sales of non-farm product in an area exceeding 150 m2. 

2.0 Proposal 

2.1 Background 
The subject parcel is 10.0 acres in size. The applicant has operated Plant Nursery Sales on the subject 
property since 1999. Additional information collected from the City of Kelowna indicates that in 2003 the 
subject property uses included: 

 Nursery stock on approximately 7.5 acres (30,350 m2); and 

 Retail sales of non-farm product such as decorative rock, topsoil, mulch on approximately .24 acres 
(1,000 m2) 
 

The City of Kelowna’s Agriculture Compliance and Enforcement Strategy identifies any non-compliant uses 
on agricultural land within the City. The subject parcel has uses which are non-compliant to Zoning Bylaw 
No. 8000, and the Agricultural Land Commission land use regulations. As such, the land owner and 
business operator have been contacted by City Bylaw and Planning staff to address the non-compliant 
uses. Identified uses include: 

 Nursery stock on approximately 3.1 acres (Compliant). 

 Retail sales of non-farm product such as decorative rock, topsoil, mulch on approximately 1.0 acre 
(Non-Compliant Use of the subject parcel). 

 In 2015 – 2016, City of Kelowna Bylaw worked with the applicant to remove outdoor storage of 
heavy equipment and stockpile materials from the southern portion of the subject parcel 
(Compliant).  
 

3



A16-0015 – Page 2 

 
 

 
Image 1 Subject Property in 2003 

Nursery Stock   Non-Farm Product 
    (approx.7.5 acres)   (approx. 0.24 acres) 

 

 

 

Image 2 Subject Property in 2015 

 

Nursery Stock   Non-Farm Product 
   (approx. 3.1 acres)   (approx. 1.0 acres) 

 

 

 

  

2 

 

4



A16-0015 – Page 3 

 
 

2.2 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to reduce the non-farm retail sales on the property from the current 1.0 acre 
(4,040 m2) area to .25 acres (1,025 m2) in area.  The proposal also increases the parking and drive aisle areas 
on the parcel to a total of 2.4 acres (9,715 m2). The two areas proposed for non-farm retail sales are 
highlighted in Image 3. The southern area shown in yellow indicates the area for stockpiling of soil, peat 
moss, and mulches. The northern area shown in yellow indicates the indoor area for retail sales of seeds, 
fertilizers, and garden tools.   

Image 3 Proposed Site Plan (see Attachment B for enlargement) 

Subject Property:    10.0 acres 

Proposed Agriculture Activities:  7.35 acres  (29,745 m2) 
The proposed farm on the subject property includes: 

 Increasing the current area of Ornamentals (floriculture, horticultural, nursery crops) from 
3.1 acres to 7.35 acres 

o Greenhouses 
o Outdoor nursery stock 

Proposed non-Farm Use Activities:   2.65 acres  (10,725 m2) 

 Reducing the current Farm Retail Sales of non-farm product from 1.0 acres to .25 acres  
o Proposed soils, mulches etc.    0.14 acres (570 m2) 
o Proposed seeds, fertilizers, garden tools   0.11 acres (455 m2) 
o Parking Lot/drive aisle     2.4 acres (9,715 m2) 

 
The proposed site plan and land uses exceed the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) allowable non-farm 
product retail sales area of 150 m2, which requires the Non-Farm Use application through the ALC.    

2.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located at 2550 Benvoulin Road in the South Pandosy/KLO sector of Kelowna.  
Benvoulin Road runs along the east boundary of the parcel, with the northern property line adjacent to 
single family residential, ALR/ agricultural land exists to the west and south. The subject property is in the 
ALR. Adjacent land use to the east and south is agricultural and is also within the ALR. The subject property 
is not serviced with municipal water or sanitary.  

Parcel Summary – 2550 Benvoulin Road 

 Parcel Size:  4.05 ha (10.0 acres)   
Elevation:  355.0 to 359.0 metres above sea level (masl) (approx.) 

5



A16-0015 – Page 4 

 
 

Image 4 Neighbourhood Map  

 
 
 

Image 5 Agricultural Land Reserve Map  

 

6



A16-0015 – Page 5 

 
 

 
Image 6 Future Land Use Map  

 

2.4 Zoning of Adjacent Property 

  Table 1: Zoning of Adjacent Property  

Direction Zoning Designation Land Use ALR 

North 
A1 – Agriculture 1 
A1 – Agriculture 1 

Agricultural 
Single Family Residential 

No 

West A1 – Agriculture 1 Orchard Yes 

South P3 – Parks & Open Space Golf Driving Range Yes 

East 
A1 – Agriculture 1 
A1 – Agriculture 1 

Agricultural 
Single Family Residential 

Yes 

 

  

7



A16-0015 – Page 6 

 
 

3.0 Compliance 

The following criteria and achievement indicator reflect the proposed site plan and proposed land use.  
3.1 City of Kelowna Agricultural Policies 

CRITERIA OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN GOALS & POLICIES ACHIEVES 

Protect 
Agricultural Land 

Retain the agricultural land base by supporting the ALR 
and by protecting agricultural lands from development, 
except as otherwise noted in the City of Kelowna 
Agricultural Plan. Ensure that the primary use of 
agricultural land is agriculture, regardless of parcel size. 

 

Homeplating 

Locate buildings and structures, including farm help 
housing and farm retail sales area and structures, on 
agricultural parcels in close proximity to one another and 
where appropriate, near the existing road frontage. The 
goal should be to maximize use of existing infrastructure 
and reduce impacts on productive agricultural lands.  

 

X 

Urban Uses 

Direct urban uses to lands within the urban portion of the 
Permanent Growth Boundary, in the interest of reducing 
development and speculative pressure on agricultural 
lands. 

X 

Farm Protection 
Development 
Permit Guidelines 

Minimize the impact of urban encroachment and land use 
conflicts on agricultural land. 

 

 
Minimize conflicts created by activities designated as farm 
use by ALC regulation and non-farm uses within 
agricultural areas. 

X 

Non-Farm Uses 

Support non-farm use applications on agricultural lands 
only where approved by the ALC and where the proposed 
uses: 

 Are consistent with the Zoning Bylaw & OCP 

 Provide significant benefits to local agriculture 

 Can be accommodated using existing infrastructure 

 Minimize impacts on productive agricultural lands 

 Will not preclude future use of the lands for 
agriculture 

 Will not harm adjacent farm operations 

 
 

X 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 CITY OF KELOWNA STRATEGIC PLAN  

Protect Agricultural 
Land  

Retain the agricultural land base by supporting the ALR and 
by protecting agricultural lands from development, except 
as otherwise noted in the City of Kelowna Agricultural Plan. 
Ensure that the primary use of agricultural land is 
agriculture, regardless of parcel size. 

 

8



A16-0015 – Page 7 

 
 

3.2 City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

Table 1: Development Criteria 

CRITERIA A1 (Agricultural) ZONE REQUIREMENTS ACHIEVES 

Minimum front yard setback 6.0 m   

Minimum Rear Yard 
10.0 m except it is 3.0 m for accessory 
buildings 

 

Maximum Site Coverage 

10% for residential development (inclusive of 
agri-tourist accommodation), 35% for 
agricultural structures and 75% for 
greenhouses 

 

Land Use 

Agriculture 

Specific to the application, Agriculture 
means the farming and agricultural practices 
as outlined in the Agricultural Land 
Commission Permitted uses.  

X 

3.3 Agricultural Land Commission regulation 

CRITERIA ALC REQUIREMENTS  ACHIEVES 

Farm Retail Sales if 
All of the farm product offered for sale is 
produced on the farm on which the retail 
sales are taking place, or 

X 

 

The total area, both indoors and outdoors, 
used for the retail sales of all products does 
not exceed 300 m2 and if at least 50% of 
that retail sales area is limited to the sale of 
farm products produced. 

As Such: the maximum area for retail sales 
area of non-farm product is 150 m2  

X 

A Non-Farm Use application is required as the applicant is proposing a non-farm product retail 
sales area from the permitted 150 m2 to the proposed 1,025 m2 (.25 acre). Over 6 times the 
permitted area.   

4.0 Community Planning 

Council is seeking a recommendation from the AAC with respect to the requested ALC Non-Farm Use 
application. The AAC should consider the proposed form of the use of the land and the potential positive 
and negative impacts of these operations on agriculture. The AAC should consider these requests relative 
to City policies identified in sections 2.5 – 2.7 of this report.   

The AAC may also wish to recommend mitigation measures or requirements to the proposed operation to 
ensure that the impacts to agriculture are minimized as appropriate. Conditions may be stipulated both 
through the Development Permit and also on an annual basis as a part of a business license renewal. 

9



A16-0015 – Page 8 

 
 

Report prepared by:  Tracey Hillis, Planner 

 
Reviewed by: Todd Cashin, Suburban and Rural Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Attachment A – Policies 
Attachment B - Proposed Site Plan 
Attachment C – Historic Aerial Photographs 
Attachment D – Technical Comments 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



A16-0015 – Page 9 

 
 

 
ATTACHMENT A - Policies 

 
 
 

Subject: Address 

 

4.1 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998) 

 
ALR Application Criteria1 
Exclusion, subdivision, or non-farm use of ALR lands will generally not be supported.  General non-support 
for ALR applications is in the interest of protecting farmland through retention of larger parcels, protection 
of the land base from impacts of urban encroachment, reducing land speculation and the cost of entering 
the farm business, and encouraging increased farm capitalization. 

1.1 City of Kelowna Strategic Plan 

Objective2: Sensitively integrate new development with heritage resources and existing urban, 
agricultural and rural areas. 
Action towards this objective3: Evaluate the effectiveness of City policies and bylaws in preserving 
agricultural lands. 

1.3 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Land Use Designation Definitions 

Resource Protection Area4 
Generally land areas within this designation (whether they are within the permanent growth boundary or 
not) will not be supported for exclusion from the ALR or for more intensive development than that allowed 
under current zoning regulations, except in specific circumstances where the City of Kelowna will allow 
exceptions to satisfy civic objectives for the provision of park/recreation uses.  
 
Permanent Growth boundary5 
Lands within the permanent growth boundary may be considered for urban uses within the 20 year 
planning horizon ending 2030. Lands outside the permanent growth boundary will not be supported for 
urban uses. 
 
 
Chapter 5 – Development Process 

Objective 5.3  Focus development to designated growth areas. 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan. 1998. P. 130. 
2 City of Kelowna Strategic Plan. 2004. P. 7. 
3 City of Kelowna Strategic Plan. 2004. P. 29. 
4 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan. Future Land Use Chapter. P. 4.2. 
5 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan. Future Land Use Chapter. P. 4.6. 

11



A16-0015 – Page 10 

 
 

Policy .1 Permanent Growth Boundary6. Establish a Permanent Growth Boundary as identified on Map 4.1 
and Map 5.2. Support development of property outside the Permanent Growth Boundary for more 
intensive uses only to the extent permitted as per the OCP Future Land Use designations in place as of 
initial adoption of OCP Bylaw 10500, except as per Council’s specific amendment of this policy. Resource 
Protection Area designated properties not in the ALR and outside the Permanent Growth Boundary will not 
be supported for subdivision below parcel sizes of 4.0 ha (10 acres). The Permanent Growth Boundary may 
be reviewed as part of the next major OCP update. 
 
Agricultural Land Use Policies 

Objective 5.33  Protect and enhance local agriculture7. 

Policy .1 Protect Agricultural Land. Retain the agricultural land base by supporting the ALR and by 
protecting agricultural lands from development, except as otherwise noted in the City of Kelowna 
Agricultural Plan. Ensure that the primary use of agricultural land is agriculture, regardless of parcel size. 
 
Policy .2 ALR Exclusions. The City of Kelowna will not forward ALR exclusion applications to the ALC 
except in extraordinary circumstances where such exclusion is otherwise consistent with the goals, 
objectives and other policies of this OCP. Soil capability alone should not be used as justification for 
exclusion. 
 
Policy .3 Urban Uses. Direct urban uses to lands within the urban portion of the Permanent Growth 
Boundary, in the interest of reducing development and speculative pressure on agricultural lands. 

 

1.4 Agricultural Land Commission Act (ALCA) 

Purposes of the commission – Section 6 of the ALCA 

The following are the purposes of the commission: 

(a) to preserve agricultural land; 

(b) to encourage farming on agricultural land in collaboration with other 

communities of interest; 

(c) to encourage local governments, first nations, the government and its 

agents to enable and accommodate farm use of agricultural land and uses 

compatible with agriculture in their plans, bylaws and policies. 
 
  

                                                      
6 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan. Development Process Chapter. P. 5.2. 
7 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Agricultural Land Use Policies Chapter. P. 5.35.  

12



A16-0015 – Page 11 

 
 

ATTACHMENT B – Proposed Site Plan 
 
  

13



A16-0015 – Page 12 

 
 

ATTACHMENT C – 2003 Aerial Photograph 

 

14



A16-0015 – Page 13 

 
 

ATTACHMENT C – 2015 Aerial Photograph 

 

15



A16-0015 – Page 14 

 
 

ATTACHMENT D – Technical Comments 
 
 
 

 

 

Subject: 

 
 
 
2550 Benvoulin Road  

 

4.2 Development Engineering Department 

Development Engineering will review and prepare a comprehensive report at the time of City Development 
Permit, and if and when the Agricultural Land Commission agrees with this proposal.  
 
Potential access requirements as per City Bylaw will need to be addressed at the time of City Development 
Permit. Bylaw No. 7900 permits a maximum of one driveway per property frontage.  
 
 

16



 1 

 

 

 

Agricultural Advisory Committee 

Minutes 

 
 
 
Date: 
Location: 

Thursday, December 8, 2016 
Knox Mountain Meeting Room (#4A) 
City Hall, 1435 Water Street 

 
Committee Members 
Present: 

John Janmaat (Chair), Ed Schiller, Keith Duhaime, Tarsem Goraya, Yvonne 
Herbison and Jill Worboys 

 
Committee Members 
Absent: 

Domenic Rampone, Jeff Ricketts (Alternate) and Kevin Daniels (Alternate) 

 
Staff Present: Suburban & Rural Planning Manager, Todd Cashin; Planner, Melanie 

Steppuhn; and FOI-Legislative Coordinator, Sandi Horning 
 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
The Chair called the meeting to order at 6:17 p.m. 
 
Opening remarks by the Chair regarding conduct of the meeting were read. 
  
2. Minutes 
 
Moved by Tarsem Goraya/Seconded by Yvonne Herbison 
 

THAT the Minutes of the September 8, 2016 Agricultural Advisory Committee meeting be 
adopted; 
 
AND THAT the Minutes of the October 13, 2016 Agricultural Advisory Committee meeting be 
adopted. 

 
Carried 

 
3. Agricultural Land Commission Decisions 
 

3.1 3665 Hart Road 
  

17



 2 

 

 
Staff: 
- Provided an update regarding the Agricultural Land Commission’s decision with respect to 3665 Hart 

Road.  The Agricultural Land Commission provided a resolution for support of the lot line adjustment. 
- Displayed the subject property map on the overhead and noted the lot line adjustments that would 

be occurring. 
 
4. Old Business 
 

4.1 Agricultural Plan Update – Engagement 
 
Staff: 
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation entitled Agriculture Plan Update Draft Action Plan Discussion. 
- Reminded that Committee Members that all of the ‘actions’ are draft.  A more detailed review will 

occur during the plan development and all actions may not be in the draft plan.  Actions that will take 
priority will include those were the City has a role. 

- Advised that a resolution from the Committee will be required in order to move the actions forward 
for Plan consideration. 

- The actions being discussed during this meeting are in addition to those proposed at Committee’s 
October 13, 2016 meeting. 

- Looking for Committee comments/feedback on the additional proposed actions: 
o Does the City play a role? 
o Do they link to the Plan’s vision? 
o Are the actions feasible? 

- Reviewed the additional actions in conjunction with the seven (7) Themes and responded to 
questions from the Committee Members. 

 
AAC Discussion: 
- Had a discussion regarding how to fine-tune the business license process. 
- Suggested mirroring the BC Assessment process for farm assessments. 
- Had a discussion regarding the additional actions under the seven (7) Themes. 
 
Moved by Yvonne Herbison/Seconded by Tarsem Goraya 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council consider adding 
“Agricultural Liaison Services” as a recommended action to the Agricultural Plan Update. 

 
Carried 

 
Anecdotal Comments: 
The Agricultural Advisory Committee suggested that a link be provided on the City’s website that would 
direct the public to an agricultural information portal. 
  

18



 3 

 

 
Moved by Keith Duhaime/Seconded by Ed Schiller 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council consider adding the 
following recommended actions to the Agricultural Plan Update: 

 
• Zoning compliance for business licenses on agricultural properties. 

 
Carried 

 
Anecdotal Comments: 
The Agricultural Advisory Committee suggested that a review of the City’s process when a business 
license is issued be completed.  The Committee recommends that there be no automatic renewal of 
business licenses on agricultural lands.  A process should be put in place to ensure that the property 
complies with the City’s zoning requirements prior to the business license being renewed. 
 
Moved by Yvonne Herbison/Seconded by Pete Spencer 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council consider adding “Farm 
Residential Footprint (Homeplate) to the recommended action to the Agricultural Plan Update: 

 

• Farm residential footprint (homeplate). 
 

Carried 
 
Anecdotal Comments: 
The Agricultural Advisory Committee suggested that the City should investigate restricting house size 
and the homeplate where the footprint is located on the property. 
 
Moved by Keith Duhaime/Seconded by Yvonne Herbison 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council adopt Theme 1 - 
Harnessing and stewarding the bio-physical environment: taking advantage of great soil and sun, 
while minimizing water use and waste, with the following recommended actions: 

 
• Support and promote sustainable production methods; 
• Undertake a governance study, ideally by a third party, to determine how agricultural 

water users can best be served by either the current irrigation district, by a City water 
provider, a hybrid, or something else; 

• Develop an Agricultural Water Plan for the City; 
• Promote and support OKSIR and push for similar initiatives for other pests; 
• Support an update to the noxious weed bylaw to ensure that the replacement noxious 

plants is done with pollinator-friendly species; 
• Support an update to the noxious weed bylaw to include “noxious organisms” such as 

insects, diseases, animals and other potential pests; 

19



 4 

 

• Work with fruit growers and experts on appropriate trees to distribute in urban areas (i.e. 
urban use and RV Park use of fruit trees for aesthetic purposes can spread pests and 
diseases into the farming areas); 

• Ensure adequate water supply for farming (include a reference to water quantity, not just 
pricing); 

• Support work being undertaken by OBWB and/or the BC CAI to model climate change 
impacts on water availability for the farming community (e.g. provide OCP and zoning 
buildout numbers for GIS modelling); 

• Limit or restrict the sale of cedar hedging within the city as they are especially heavy 
water feeders; 

• Update the soil deposit and removal bylaw, and include reference to composting; 
• Include an action regarding the need for education of the public around existing bylaws; 
• Provide leadership around best management practices for mulching (e.g. use mulch in 

city landscaping activities); 
• Ensure that water restriction/drought level messaging is consistent across jurisdictions 

in the region; 
• Support the creation of a regional composting facility for yard waste and food scraps; 

and 
• Support the work that is being done in regional air quality plan (smoke reduction). 

 
Carried 

 
Moved by Yvonne Herbison/Seconded by Tarsem Goraya 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council adopt Theme 2 - 
Increasing consumer awareness and support for local agriculture: introducing Kelowna farms to 
residents and visitors alike, with the following recommended actions: 

 
• Continue to support YLW programs such as Farm to Flight and expanded services at the 

airport such as a new restaurant in the departure lounge that will serve local apples, beer, 
and wine; 

• Work with the BC Farmers Market Association on an expanded market strategy and 
investigate options for pocket markets; 

• Work with the BC Farmers Market Association to determine what infrastructure is 
needed in order to find a better, permanent, year-round market location. Tourism 
Kelowna is also interested in a more consistent and permanent location for the market; 

• Work with Tourism Kelowna to facilitate agricultural events (festivals, open houses, cycle 
tours, etc.); 

• Increase public education of farming practices and what crops are being produced 
through signage; 

• Developing a resource registry of farmers willing to go to schools or host school groups 
on their farms; and 

• Investigate making multi-family shared gardens mandatory in new developments for 
urban agriculture through DCCs or amenity benefit tools.  

 
Carried 

 

20



 5 

 

Moved by Pete Spencer/Seconded by Keith Duhaime 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council adopt Theme 3 - Managing 
urban and rural growth & development: keeping non-farm uses off the ALR, with the following 
recommended actions: 

 
• Work with YLW to determine how the impacts of ALR exclusion, for airport expansion, 

could be offset by creating benefits to the agricultural sector (e.g. provide topsoil to 
other farms, create on-site storage and warehousing for distribution by airplane, etc.); 

• Clarify what are allowable activities on agricultural land (e.g. ensure that buildings for 
storage, non-soil bound agriculture is not taking up too much land); 

• Include farmers in discussions regarding roadway changes and provide opportunities for 
farmers to apply for roadway changes; 

• Create a public service initiative that includes messaging (e.g. website, social media, 
printed signs) to educate non-farming residents about what to expect month-to-month 
in terms of agricultural activities; 

• Use signs to promote when spraying is occurring (e.g. please respect that farming is an 
industrial activity). 

• Target those purchasing land in the ALR/A1 or near the ALR/A1 to educate them about 
normal farm practices. This could include information at point of sale (e.g. covenant or 
disclosure agreement to acknowledge agricultural activities and the Right to Farm Act); 

• Plan traffic calming measures and transportation corridors such that they do not bisect 
agricultural communities; and 

• Develop restrictions on new developments next to farming to include buffers and other 
edge planning tools. 

 
Carried 

 
Moved by Yvonne Herbison/Seconded by Keith Duhaime 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council adopt Theme 4 - 
Supporting economic development of the agricultural sector: creating farms that create a profit, 
with the following recommended actions: 

 
• Investigate options for DCCs for temporary farm worker housing; 
• Support the concept of developing a cooperative food hub; 
• Determine what the best role is for the City regarding agri-tourism (e.g. develop a 

strategy; clarify allowable uses, etc.); 
• Provide a staff point-person (agricultural champion or extension staff) for farmers at the 

City level in planning and possibly engineering/infrastructure services. This could be an 
agrologist; 

• Collaborate with OK College, UBCO and community farm groups on incubator farm and 
restaurants concepts; and 

• Investigate ways to facilitate long-term leases on agricultural lands. 
 

Carried 
 

21



 6 

 

Moved by Tarsem Goraya/Seconded by Pete Spencer 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council adopt Theme 5 - Bridging 
existing gaps in the food system: getting local food onto local plates, with the following 
recommended actions: 

 
• Support the Kelowna Okanagan Food Hub Initiative; 
• Make grant programs accessible to food security and agricultural organizations that are 

registered societies but do not necessarily have charitable status; 
• Partner with the Kelowna farmers market to plan a food hub; 
• Include community pasture possibilities or leased public land for farming; 
• Encourage people to farm in urban areas (e.g. zoning to encourage bee keeping and 

urban chickens); 
• Conduct soil testing and publish results to identify where food could/should be grown in 

the City; 
• Work with the airport to identify food storage opportunities for producers wishing to 

distribute products through YLW; and 
• Facilitate education around economic viability of farming on small, urban lots. 
 

Carried 
 
Moved by Ed Schiller/Seconded by Keith Duhaime 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council adopt Theme 6 - Planning 
for farm succession: making sure that retirement of the farmer doesn’t mean retirement of the 
farm, with the following recommended actions: 

 
• Encourage production on under-utilized land; 
• Match tax rates with land production activities: Tax higher rates for under-utilized land 

instead of lower farm rates; 
• Ensure options for keeping farm families on the farm exist; 
• Lobby Provincial and Federal governments to support agriculture; 
• Support new farmers by supporting the Central Okanagan Land Trust and partner with 

them to explore if and how agricultural land could be included as part of the trust; 
• Promote business aspects of running a farm. 

 
Carried 

 
Moved by Keith Duhaime/Seconded by Yvonne Herbison 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council adopt Theme 7 - Aligning 
local policies and regulations with the Agriculture Plan Update-’s vision: providing clear direction 
for decision-makers and landowners, with the following recommended actions: 

 
• Provide information on who people can talk to about farming issues; 
• Provide recognition that the expansion of YLW, as identified in the 2045 Airport 

Masterplan, will require the exclusion of ALR parcels; 

22



 7 

 

• Support a third party review of irrigation districts and the city water provider(s) to 
determine what type of water governance best serves agricultural users (must consider 
cost, health standards, and agricultural needs); 

• Ensure that water and agriculture is written into plans and bylaws (in particular if 
irrigation districts are amalgamated); 

• Consider developing a drought management and response plan (e.g. as West Kelowna 
has done); 

• Look to regional approach to address some issues; 
• Provide support for NGOs that are working in the areas of food security and agriculture; 
• Adopt effective procedures for enforcement of policies and regulations to support the 

Agriculture plan and ensure enforcement is appropriate resourced; and 
• Recognize the benefit of agricultural lands to the community and investigate eco-system 

services; 
 

AND THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council move the following 
recommendation action under Theme 1 - Harnessing and stewarding the bio-physical 
environment: taking advantage of great soil and sun, while minimizing water use and waste: 
 

• Investigate options for addressing mule deer. 
 

Carried 
 
Staff: 
- Advised of the next steps in the Agricultural Plan Update process. 
 
5. Next Meeting 
 
The next Committee meeting has been tentatively scheduled for January 12, 2017. 
 
The Chair advised that he will be out of the country for the next few months and therefore will note be 
able to attend upcoming Committee meetings. 
 
Staff advised that the Committee will need to appoint a Chair and Vice-Chair for 2017.  The Chair 
confirmed that the will let his name stand as Committee Chairperson. 
 
Moved by Pete Spencer/Seconded by Tarsem Goraya 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee authorizes John Janmaat to be absent for three (3) or 
more consecutive meetings without forfeiting his appointment. 
 

Carried 
 
  

23



 8 

 

 
6. Termination of Meeting 
 
The Chair declared the meeting terminated at 8:32 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
       ________________________________________ 

John Janmaat, Chair 
 
/slh 

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48


	Agenda
	3.1 Benvoulin Rd 2550 A16-0015 RTAAC.pdf
	4. Draft Minutes - Agricultural Advisory Committee_Dec08_2016.pdf
	6.1 Temporary Farm Worker Housing - Proposed Policies.pdf
	6.1 TFWH Attachments OCP16-0022 TA16-0015 TA16-0016 2017-01-30.pdf

